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MEMORANDUM

	To:
	Conservation, Development & Planning Commission
	From:
	Hillary Gitelman

	
	
	
	

	Date:
	November 4, 2009
	Re:
	Vacation Rental Ordinance


This memo is intended to provide the Commission with additional information and analysis concerning the Vacation Rental Ordinance that is scheduled for a public hearing on November 18, 2009.  
Background

The use of dwelling units as vacation rentals or tourist accommodations has long been considered a commercial use, and is thus prohibited in the agricultural and residential zoning districts of Napa County.  This prohibition derives from the definition of a “dwelling unit” as a residence for owner occupancy or rental/lease “on a monthly or longer basis” (Napa County Code Section 18.08.260) and the definition of “commercial use” as a use that involves “the exchange of cash, goods or services… in exchange for goods, services, lodging…”(Section 18.02.107).  
The proposed ordinance would clarify the longstanding prohibition on the use of dwelling units as vacation rentals, and would neither expand nor alter existing restrictions.  The ordinance’s intention is to make it more clear to the reader that vacation rentals are subject to code enforcement action, violation abatement, and civil penalties, and to indicate that civil penalties may include back payment of the transient occupancy tax (TOT) that would have been paid to the County if the vacation rental had been a legal use.
CEQA Compliance

Because the proposed ordinance is declarative of existing regulations, and clarifies rather than substantively changing existing provisions of Napa County Code, the proposed ordinance is exempt from review under CEQA.  Specifically, the Class 5 Categorical Exemption (CEQA Guidelines Section 15305) provides an exemption for “minor alterations in land use limitations,” and is supported by language in the County’s formally adopted local guidelines for implementing CEQA (Appendix B, item 14), which specifically exempts “Implementation of zone change that do not increase the maximum intensity of land use allowed.”   In the current instance, the proposed ordinance involves a zoning text amendment and does not increase the maximum intensity of land use allowed, and would therefore fall within this exemption.  
The proposed ordinance is also covered by the “general rule” CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3), which states that “Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.”  The proposed ordinance essentially constitutes a clarification or technical amendment of an existing ordinance and would perpetuate longstanding County policies and practices.  There is no evidence that the ordinance would result in development or have any direct or indirect environmental impacts.  Land use designations would not change as a result of the ordinance, and the ordinance would not authorize development of undeveloped land beyond what is currently allowed.  

General Plan Conformity

In terms of General Plan conformity, the proposed ordinance would perpetuate longstanding County policies restricting commercial uses in agricultural areas (see General Plan Policies AG/LU-4 and AG/LU-12 specifically), and would further Policy AG/LU-33 about residential areas:  “The County will promote development concepts that create flexibility, economy, and variety in housing without resulting in significant environmental impacts and without allowing residences to become timeshares, resorts, hotels, or similar tourist-type accommodations.”  

The proposed ordinance would also implement Program H-1c from the Housing Element, which states:  “…the County’s code enforcement program will assign high priority to abatement of illegal vacation rentals, ensuring that existing dwelling units are used as residences, rather than tourist accommodations.”   In addition, clarifications contained in the ordinance would advance Action Item AG/LU-107.1, which calls on the County to “Undertake revisions to the zoning ordinance (County Code Title 18), simplifying and reorganizing to the extent feasible so that members of the public, applicants, planners and decision –makers can more easily access information and understand code requirements.”
For all of these reasons, the proposed ordinance is consistent with the Napa County General Plan.
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